
 

 

 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 

Date: Friday 8th July, 2022 
Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: Mandela Room 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

 
1.   Welcome and Evacuation Procedure 

 
 

  

2.   Apologies for Absence 
 
 

  

3.   Declarations of Interest 
 
 

  

4.   Minutes - Standards Committee - 11 May 2022 
 
 

 3 - 4 

5.   Quarterly Update Report to Standards Committee 
 
 

 5 - 20 

6.   Exclusion of Press and Public 
 
To consider passing a Resolution Pursuant to Section 100A 
(4) Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972 excluding the 
press and public from the meeting during consideration of the 
following items on the grounds that if present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information falling within 
paragraphs 1 and 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act and 
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 
 
 

  

7.   Investigation Report Outcome 
 
 

 21 - 26 

 
Charlotte Benjamin 
Director of Legal and Governance Services 

 

Page 1



 

Town Hall 
Middlesbrough 
Thursday 30 June 2022 
 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillors T Mawston (Chair), M Saunders (Vice-Chair), D Coupe, S Dean, S Hill, 
D Rooney, J Rostron, M Storey and S Walker 
 
Assistance in accessing information 
 
Should you have any queries on accessing the Agenda and associated information 
please contact Susan Lightwing, 01642 729712, 
susan_lightwing@middlesbrough.gov.uk 
 

Page 2



Standards Committee 11 May 2022 
 

 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the Standards Committee was held on Wednesday 11 May 2022. 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors  , M Saunders (Vice-Chair), S Dean, S Hill, J Hobson, D Rooney, 
J Rostron and M Storey 
 

ALSO IN 
ATTENDANCE: 

J Race (Independent Person) and D Hayward (Wilkin Chapman llp Solicitors) 

 
OFFICERS: C Benjamin, A Hoy, S Lightwing, J McNally and S Reynolds 
 
APOLOGIES FOR 
ABSENCE: 

Councillors T Mawston and S Walker 

 
21/32 WELCOME AND EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

 
 In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair chaired the meeting.  The Vice Chair welcomed all 

present and read out the Building Evacuation Procedure. 
 

21/33 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 There were no Declarations of Interest at this point in the meeting. 
 

21/34 MINUTES- STANDARDS COMMITTEE - 26 APRIL 2022 
 

 The minutes of the Standards Committee meeting held on 26 April 2022 were submitted and 
approved as a correct record. 
 

21/35 PROCEDURE FOR A STANDARDS COMMITTEE HEARING 
 

 A copy of the Procedure for a Standards Committee Hearing had been provided as Agenda 
Item 5 for Members’ information. 
 

21/36 ANY OTHER URGENT ITEMS WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, MAY BE 
CONSIDERED 
 

 The Subject Member of the complaint was absent and due consideration was given by 
Committee Members as to whether to adjourn or proceed with the meeting.  The Monitoring 
Officer provided information in relation to communications with the Subject Member 
throughout the Members’ Code of Conduct Complaint process. 
 
ORDERED that the meeting would proceed. 
 

21/37 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

 The Chair sought the views of the Committee and the Monitoring Officer as to whether the 
complaint should be heard in public or private session. 
 
ORDERED that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on 
the grounds that, if present, there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraphs 1 and 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
and that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in 
disclosing the information. 
 

21/38 STANDARDS COMPLAINT REF: IKEN: 11230 
 

 The Investigating Officer presented his report, a copy of which had been circulated prior to the 
meeting, regarding an investigation which had been undertaken in accordance with the 
prevailing legislation and guidance in relation to an allegation that Councillor McTigue had 
breached the Members’ Code of Conduct in that she did not respect others, conducted herself 
in a manner which was likely to bring the Authority, Office or the Member into disrepute and 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



11 May 2022 

 

did not use social media responsibly. 
 
A summary of the complaint, details of the relevant legislation, protocols and Members' Code 
of Conduct, the review process, findings of fact and conclusions were presented by the 
Investigating Officer. 
 
Committee Members were given the opportunity to question the Investigating Officer in 
relation to his report. 
 
The Monitoring Officer addressed the Committee’s concerns regarding the time taken to 
process the complaint.   
 
Having considered the Investigating Officer's report, the supporting documentation, the 
Investigating Officer's comments and questioning, the Committee considered the findings of 
fact, and based on those findings, whether Councillor McTigue had failed to comply with the 
Members' Code of Conduct.   
 
The Independent Person was consulted and provided his views. 
 
In regard to the allegations, the Standards Committee unanimously supported the findings of 
the Investigating Officer's Report.   The Committee concluded that Councillor McTigue had 
breached the Members' Code of Conduct in respect of the complaints. 
 
It was ORDERED that the following sanctions be imposed: 
 
1.  Councillor McTigue to provide a written apology to the Council employee who was the 
subject of the complaint, by 6 July 2022, with a copy provided to the Standards Committee. 
 
2.  Councillor McTigue to receive one-to-one training on the appropriate use of social media 
and the Member/Officer Protocol, to be provided by the relevant Council Officer(s), and this 
should be completed by 6 July 2022. 
 
3.  Councillor McTigue to be subject of a motion of public censure at the Council meeting 
scheduled for 6 July 2022. 
 
4.  Should sanctions 1 and 2 above not be completed within the stated timescale, Councillor 
McTigue would be subject to further public censure. 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 4



1 

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
Report of: Director of Legal And Governance Services 

Executive Member for Legal And Governance Services   

 

Submitted to: Standards Committee 

 

Date: 8 July 2022 

 

Title: Quarterly update report to Standards Committee 

 

Report for: Information 

 

Status: Public 

 

Strategic priority: Quality of service 

 

Key decision: Not applicable 

Why: Report is for information only 

 

Urgent: No 

Why: Not applicable 

 

Executive summary  

 

This report provides a quarterly update to the Standards Committee in regards to the 

recent and current position concerning Code of Conduct Complaints so that the 

committee has assurance about the practice and process 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



2 

Purpose 
 
1. To provide information only by way of a quarterly update to the Standards Committee in 

regards to the recent and current position concerning Code of Conduct Complaints so 
that the committee has assurance about the practice and process. 

 
Background and relevant information 
 
2. This report is provided to committee members to give an overview of the current, and 

recent position in regards to the Code of Conduct complaints received.  
 
 

Year 
(Jan-
Dec) 

Total 
complaints 

Member on 
Member 

Other on 
Member 
(ie 
member of 
public, 
officer) 

No. withdrawn/ 
not progressed 
by 
complainant 
 

No. 
rejected 

No. 
resolved 
informally 

No. to 
investigation 

No. to 
standards 
Committee 
after 
investigation 
 

2019 27 9 18 4 9 10 4 3 

2020 31 4 27 16 12 1 1 0 

2021 33 13 20 2 4 17 4 1 

2022 
(to date) 

6 2 4 1 0 1 0 0 

 
3. The last update incorrectly showed the total complaints for 2021 as 35. This has now 

been updated to reflect the true figure of 33. By way of explanation, one matter had 
been closed and then reopened as there was an ongoing issue, which had then been 
counted twice in error. The other entry was a table header row which should not have 
been included in the initial count. The rest of the figures have been adjusted 
accordingly. The introduction of the dashboard will reduce the risk of this human error 
occurring in the future.  
 

4. There is 1 complaint from 2020, and 8 complaints from 2021 at various stages of the 
process which have not yet concluded. We are unable to give any specifics about 
those complaints at this time so as not to prejudice any outcomes, and/or create a 
conflict should any of those complaints need to come to Standards Committee at a 
future date.   
 

5. Since the last quarterly update, 1 complaint from 2021 has been resolved, the details of 
which are as below: 

 
Ref 12330 – A complaint against Cllr Joan McTigue by Cllr Ashley Waters, as he was 
at the time of submission.  The complaint was brought to standards committee on 11th 
May 2022.  
 
The committee concluded that Councillor J McTigue, acting in her capacity as member 
of  Middlesbrough Borough Council (‘the Council’), had breached items 3.2, 3.5 and 
3.12 of the Members Code of Conduct on social media posts on 28 November 2019 
and on 23 December 2020, in that she did not respect others, conducted herself in a 
manner which was likely to bring the authority, office, or the Member into disrepute and 
did not use social media responsibly. 
 
 
 

Page 6



3 

The Standards Committee, in consultation with the Independent Person, ORDERED 
that the following sanctions were imposed: 
 
1.  Councillor McTigue to provide a written apology to the Council employee who was  
 the subject of the complaint, by 6 July 2022, with a copy provided to the Standards  
 Committee. 
 
2. Councillor McTigue to receive one-to-one training on the appropriate use of social 
 media and the Member/Officer Protocol, to be provided by the relevant Council 
 Officer(s), and this should be completed by 6 July 2022. 
 
3.    Councillor McTigue to be subject of a motion of public censure at the Council   
       meeting scheduled for 6 July 2022. 
 
4.  Should sanctions 1 and 2 above not be completed within the stated timescale,  
  Councillor McTigue would be subject to further public censure. 
 

6. There have been 6 complaints submitted to date in 2022, one of which was 
subsequently withdrawn by the complainant, leaving 5 complaints, 4 of which are 
ongoing, and 1 resolved by way of informal resolution, namely advice and guidance, as 
set out in the previous update.  

 
7. As mentioned in the previous report to the Committee, there is now a code of conduct 

complaints dashboard in place in order to be able to improve the monitoring of the 
performance in regards to the complaints, and better analyse outcomes etc The 
performance dashboard which will enable analysis of patterns and outcomes concerning 
complaints. A demonstration of the Dashboard will be provided to the Committee, albeit 
anonymised due to confidentiality to demonstrate the analysis and data it holds.   

 
8. Further documentation has been produced to assist members of the public in making a 

complaint and to understand the process of complaints this has been appended to the 
report for information at appendix 1.  
 

9. For information, we have also provided a template document for the Independent 
Person(IP) to follow when making a determination of whether to accept or reject a 
complaint. In essence this is to provide a level of consistency and record management 
to easily follow the rationale of decision making by the IP. A copy of the template is 
attached for comments and information at appendix 2. 
 

10. An exempt report relating to Complaint Ref 011731 is provided at Agenda Item 7 for 
noting.  
 

What decision(s) are being recommended?  
 
That the Standards Committee: 
 

 Note the contents of this report for information only.  
 
Rationale for the recommended decision(s) 
 
11. No decision required – report is for information only.  
 

Page 7



4 

Other potential decision(s) and why these have not been recommended 
 
12. None – no decision is required. Report for update only. 
 
Impact(s) of the recommended decision(s) 
 
Legal 
 
13. There is no legal impact as a decision is not required. 
 
Strategic priorities and risks 
 
14.  Not applicable.  
 
Human Rights, Equality and Data Protection 
 
15. There are no issues of equality and diversity as a decision is not required.  

 
Financial 
 
16. There is no financial impact as a decision is not required. 
 
Actions to be taken to implement the recommended decision(s) 
 
Not applicable as a decision is not required.  
 

Action Responsible Officer Deadline 

   

 
Appendices 
 

1 Draft Guidance on how to make a complaint 

2 IP template Preliminary test 

3 Confidential report Ref 011731 

 
Background papers 
 
No background papers were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
 
Contact: Charlotte Benjamin 
Email:  charotte_benjamin@middlesbrough.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 8



 COMPLAINT ABOUT AN ELECTED MEMBER 

Guidance on how to make a complaint if you are unhappy about the behaviour 

of an Elected Member serving on Middlesbrough Council, Nunthorpe Parish 

Council or Stainton and Thornton Parish Council. This form may also be used 

to submit a complaint about Non-Elected Members such as a Co-opted 

Member of a Scrutiny Panel 

1. This Guidance explains what you may complain about, how to fill in the complaint 

form and what will happen to your complaint once it has been submitted. 

Code of Conduct 

2. Middlesbrough Council has adopted a Code of Conduct for all of its Members. 

Each Parish Council is also required to adopt a Code of Conduct for its Members. 

 

3. Formal standards complaints about the conduct of a parish councillor towards a 

clerk should be referred by the chair or by the parish council as a whole to the 

Legal Services Manager, rather than the clerk in all but exceptional 

circumstances.  

Monitoring Officer  

4. Charlotte Benjamin, Director of Legal and Governance Services, is the Council’s 

Monitoring Officer. This is a statutory role, responsible for ensuring that the 

Council, its Members and officers carry out their functions in a lawful and ethical 

manner. The role includes supporting the Standards Committee and the 

Independent Person(s) in dealing with complaints alleging a breach of the 

Members’ Code of Conduct. The functions of the Monitoring Officer in respect of 

Code of Conduct Complaints is shared with the Deputy Monitoring Officers and 

any reference to Monitoring Officer contained within this document refers equally 

to the Deputy Monitoring Officers. 

Independent Persons  

5. The Council appoints Independent Persons from outside the Council to assist the 

Monitoring Officer and the Standards Committee in considering complaints. This is 

statutory requirement under the Localism Act 2011. Middlesbrough has appointed 

two Independent Persons.  

 

6. The Independent Person must be consulted at various stages in the complaints 

process and also before the Standards Committee makes a finding as to whether 

a member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct and decides on the action 

to be taken in respect of a Member. 

Factors to consider prior to a complaint being accepted  under the Members’ 

Code of Conduct?  

7. The council will need to consider, when deciding to accept a complaint or to take 

other action, the cost, both of public money and the Officers’ and Councillors’ 

time. This is an important consideration where the matter is relatively minor. 

Page 9



8. The following non-exclusive factors may help Middlesbrough Council when 

deciding whether to accept or reject a complaint the process is split into two 

stages: 

 

8.1. Initial Criteria: 
The first step would be a jurisdictional test and would assess whether the 

complaint is: 

a) against one or more named councillors of the authority or of a parish or 

town council the authority is responsible for; 

b) the named councillor was in office at the time of the alleged conduct; 

c) the complaint relates to matters where the councillor was acting as a 

councillor or representative of the authority and it is not a private matter; 

d) the complaint, if proven, would be a breach of the Code under which the 

councillor was operating at the time of the alleged misconduct. 

If the complaint fails one or more of these jurisdictional tests it cannot be 

investigated as a breach of the Code, and the complainant must be informed that 

no further action will be taken in respect of the complaint. 

 

8.2. Secondary Criteria 

The following non-exclusive factors may help an authority to develop local criteria: 

a) Does the complaint contain sufficient evidence to demonstrate a 

potential breach of the Code? 

b) Are there alternative, more appropriate, remedies that should be 

explored first? 

c) Where the complaint is by one councillor against another, a greater 

allowance for robust political debate (but not personal abuse) may be 

given, bearing in mind the right to freedom of expression; 

d) Is the complaint in the view of the authority malicious, politically 

motivated, or ‘tit for tat’ 

e) Whether an investigation would not be in the public interest or the 

matter, even if proven, would not be serious enough to warrant any 

sanction and conducting a full investigation would have a 

disproportionate effect on both public money and officers’ and 

Members’ time; 

f) Whether a substantially similar complaint has previously been 

considered and no new material evidence has been submitted within 

the current administration; 

Page 10



g) Whether a substantially similar complaint has been submitted and 

accepted; 

h) Does the complaint relate to conduct in the distant past? This would 

include consideration or any reason why there had been a delay in 

making the complaint; 

i) Was the behaviour that is the subject of the complaint already dealt 

with? For example, through an apology at the relevant meeting; 

j) Does the complaint actually relate to dissatisfaction with a local 

authority decision rather than the specific conduct of an individual? And 

k) Is it about someone who is no longer a councillor or who is seriously ill? 

 

How to make a complaint 

9. Your complaint must be made in writing using the Members’ Code of Conduct 

Complaints form. An online form is available on the council’s website by clicking 

the link, the form can also be downloaded there: 

https://www.middlesbrough.gov.uk/mayor-council-and-

councillors/councillors/councillor-code-conduct 

 

10. Once you have completed your form, please send it, together with any additional 

information that you want to include in support of your complaint to the above 

address.  

How to complete the Complaint Form: 

11. Section 1: Your contact details - Please provide your full name, address, 

contact telephone number and e-mail address if you have one. 

 

12. Section 2: Your Complaint - You can complain about Members of 

Middlesbrough Council, or Members of Nunthorpe Parish Council, Stainton and 

Thornton Parish Council or a Co-opted Member of a Committee. 

 

13. You can complain about a Member breaching any part of the Members’ Code of 

Conduct. A copy of the Code of Conduct can be found at Appendix A to this 

Guidance.  

 

14. If you believe that a Member has breached the Code of Conduct, please indicate 

which parts of the Code that you believe they have breached and attach any 

evidence that you may have that you feel is relevant to your complaint. This 

evidence may include details of any witnesses, or copies of any relevant 

documentation.  

 

15. We can only consider a complaint on the evidence that has been provided or 

made available to us.  

 

Page 11

https://www.middlesbrough.gov.uk/mayor-council-and-councillors/councillors/councillor-code-conduct
https://www.middlesbrough.gov.uk/mayor-council-and-councillors/councillors/councillor-code-conduct


16. Section 3: Confidential information - In the interests of fairness and natural 

justice, we believe that Members who are complained about have a right to know 

who made the complaint and we would usually provide them with a summary of 

the complaint. Unless the Monitoring Officer is of the opinion that it is not in the 

public interest to do so, we are unlikely to withhold your identity, or the details of 

your complaint. For example, where the disclosure of your personal details could 

result in any evidence being compromised or destroyed by the Member that is the 

subject of the complaint, or if there is a possibility that you or a witness could 

suffer intimidation from the Member.  

What will happen to your complaint? 

17. Once you have submitted your complaint, we will write to you to advise that we 

have received it. The Monitoring Officer will then consider your complaint and 

decide whether it should be accepted or rejected. As part of this process, the 

Monitoring Officer will consult the Independent Person for their view on the merits 

of the complaint. If a decision is made to reject your complaint, we will write to 

you giving reasons for our decision.  

 

18. Your complaint will be assessed by the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the 

Independent Person, following the assessment criteria.  

 

19. If the complaint is accepted, we will advise the Member that you are complaining 

about and advise them of the relevant parts of the Code of Conduct that it is 

alleged that they may have breached.  

 

20. If a decision is made to progress the complaint, it may be considered for informal 

resolution or referred for investigation.  

What is meant by ‘Informal Resolution?’ 

21. The Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Independent Person, may decide 

that your complaint is best handled by ‘Informal Resolution’. The reasons for this 

could be:  

 

a) The Subject Member appears to have a poor understanding of the Code 

of Conduct and/or related Council or Parish Council procedures; or 

b) There appears to be a breakdown in the relationship between the 

Complainant and the Subject Member; or 

c) The conduct complained of appears to be a symptom of wider 

underlying conflicts which, if unresolved, are likely to lead to lead to 

further misconduct or allegations of misconduct; or 

d) The conduct complained of appears common to a number of Members 

of the Council or Parish Council, demonstrating a lack of awareness, 

experience or  recognition of the particular provisions of the Code of 

Conduct and/or other Council or Parish Council procedures, etc.; or 

Page 12



e) The conduct complained of appears to the Monitoring Officer not to 

require a formal censure; or 

f) The complaint appears to reveal a lack of guidance, protocols and 

procedures within the Council or Parish Council; or 

g) The complaint consists of allegations and retaliatory allegations 

between Councillors; or 

h) The complaint consists of allegations about how formal meetings are 

conducted; or 

i) The conduct complained of may be due to misleading, unclear or 

misunderstood advice from officers. 

 
 
22. Informal resolution may consist of one or more of the following actions, which do 

not have to be limited to the Member, but may extend to other Councillors 
including the Council as a whole, where it may be useful to address systemic 
behaviour: 

a) Training; 
b) Conciliation/mediation; 
c) Mentoring; 
d) Apology, written/verbal; 
e) Implementing changes to the Council or Parish Council’s procedures. 
f) Conflict management; 
g) Development of the Council’s or Parish Council’s protocols; 
h) Other remedial action by the Council or Parish Council; or 
i) Other steps (other than investigation), if it appears appropriate to the 

Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Independent Person. 
 
23. Where the Member will not participate in the informal resolution process or if, 

having agreed to one or more actions under the informal resolution process, the 
Member refuses or fails to carry out any agreed action, the Monitoring Officer will 
report the matter to the Standards Committee. 

 
Investigation   

24. If a decision is made to investigate your complaint we will write to you and inform 

you of the timescales involved in completing the investigation. You will have the 

opportunity to provide the Investigating Officer with any 

information/documentation which you feel is relevant to your complaint. If the 

complaint is in relation to a Parish Councillor, we may ask the Parish Council to 

assist with the investigation. Responsibility for the investigation and the final 

decision on the outcome of the complaint will remain with the Monitoring Officer.  

Conclusion of the Investigation 

25. Once the investigation has concluded, if it is found that there is no breach of the 

Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer will write to you and the person who is 

the subject of the complaint to advise of the outcome and inform you that there 

Page 13



will be no further action taken. There is no appeal against this decision but 

reasons for the decision will be given. 

 

26. If the Investigating Officer concludes that there is evidence of a breach of the 

Code of Conduct, then the Monitoring Officer will consult the Independent Person 

and make a decision either to: 

 Resolve the matter through an Informal Resolution 

 Convene a meeting of the Standards Committee to hear the matter. 

Standards Committee 

27. If the complaint progresses to a Standards Committee then the Monitoring officer 

will write to you and inform you of the Committee date. 

28. The Committee will consider whether to hold the meeting in public or in private. 

This will be dependent on the nature and content of the complaint and whether 

any of the information is exempt/confidential. 

 

29. The Investigating Officer will present their report to the Committee and call any 

witnesses that they deem necessary. The Member concerned will be allowed to 

respond to the Investigating Officer’s findings and may also call witnesses. 

 

30. If the Standards Committee determines that there has been no breach of the 

Code of Conduct, then the matter will be closed. There is no provision for an 

appeal against the decision of the Standards Committee. 

 

31. If the Standards Committee concludes that there has been a breach of the Code 

of Conduct, the Committee must consider whether and what sanction would be 

appropriate to impose on the Member. These could include (but not limited to): 

 Instructing the Monitoring Officer to arrange training for the member. 

 That policies/procedures are amended. 

 That a briefing/information note be issued. 

 That an apology be given. 

 That the Member is censured in writing and a copy of the letter is 
published on the Council’s website. 

 Withdrawal of certain facilities or services which could include access to 
Council premises and/or removal or restriction of IT facilities. 

 Implement a Communication Plan. 

 Take no action where it is not considered appropriate in the 
circumstances to impose a sanction. 

 

32. The Council does not have the authority to suspend a Councillor from office or to 

withhold any basic allowance remuneration. 

 

33. Where there is a decision on an allegation of misconduct following a formal 

investigation, a decision notice should be published as soon as possible on the 

Council website, including a brief statement of facts, the provisions of the code 

involved in the allegations, the view of the Independent Person, the reasoning of 

the decision-maker, and any sanction applied.  

 

Page 14



34. There is no provision for an appeal against the decision of the Monitoring Officer 

and Independent Person or the Standards Committee. 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Code of Conduct 

PRELIMINARY TESTS – Independent Person 

 

Complainant:  

Councillor Complained of:  

1.1  The complaint will be assessed by the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the 

 Independent Person, and the following assessment criteria applied:  

 Criteria Y/N Reasons (if applicable) 

Initial Criteria 
The first step would be a jurisdictional test and would assess whether the complaint is: 

A)  against one or more 
named councillors of 
the authority or of a 
parish or town 
council the authority 
is responsible for; 

  

B)  the named councillor 
was in office at the 
time of the alleged 
conduct; 

  

C)  the complaint relates 
to matters where the 
councillor was acting 
as a councillor or 
representative of the 
authority and it is 
not a private matter; 

  

D)  the complaint, if 
proven, would be a 
breach of the Code 
under which the 
councillor was 
operating at the time 
of the alleged 
misconduct. 

  

Secondary Criteria 
The following non-exclusive factors may help an authority to develop local criteria 

A.  Does the complaint 
contain sufficient 
evidence to 
demonstrate a 
potential breach of 
the Code? 
 

  

 

 

Page 17



B.  Are there 
alternative, more 
appropriate, 
remedies that should 
be explored first? 
 

  

C.  Where the complaint 
is by one councillor 
against another, a 
greater allowance 
for robust political 
debate (but not 
personal abuse) may 
be given, bearing in 
mind the right to 
freedom of 
expression. 

  

D.  Is the complaint in 
the view of the 
authority malicious, 
politically motivated, 
or ‘tit for tat’? 

  

E.  Whether an 
investigation would 
not be in the public 
interest or the 
matter, even if 
proven, would not 
be serious enough to 
warrant any sanction 
and conducting a full 
investigation would 
have a 
disproportionate 
effect on both public 
money and officers’ 
and Members’ time. 

  

F.  Whether a 
substantially similar 
complaint has 
previously been 
considered and no 
new material 
evidence has been 
submitted within the 
current 
administration. 

  

G.  Whether a 
substantially similar 
complaint has been 

  

Page 18



submitted and 
accepted. 

H.  Does the complaint 
relate to conduct in 
the distant past? This 
would include 
consideration or any 
reason why there 
had been a delay in 
making the 
complaint? 

  

I.  Was the behaviour 
that is the subject of 
the complaint 
already dealt with? 
For example, 
through an apology 
at the relevant 
meeting? 

  

J.  Does the complaint 
actually relate to 
dissatisfaction with a 
local authority 
decision rather than 
the specific conduct 
of an individual? 

  

K.  Is it about someone 
who is no longer a 
councillor or who is 
seriously ill? 
 

  

L.  Are there any other 
matters that need to 
be considered in 
deciding whether to 
accept or reject the 
complaint? 

  

 

Recommendation: Accept/Reject*(deletion) 

Reasons: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



Recommendation of the Independent Person on next steps of the Complaint: 

 

 

 

 

Assessment completed by…………..  

 

Date of Assessment: 

 

 

Page 20



Document is Restricted

Page 21

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes - Standards Committee - 11 May 2022
	5 Quarterly Update Report to Standards Committee
	Guidance on how to make a complaint final
	Preliminary test IP

	7 Investigation Report Outcome

